

## **CURTIN UNIVERSITY HOCKEY CLUB**

# ANNUAL REPORT SEASON 2018



## Contents

Curtin University Hockey Club	3
Life Members	3
Office Bearers for the 2018 Season	3
Executive Committee	3
Operational Committee	4
Award Winners	4
Club Awards	4
Women's Best and Fairest	5
Men's Best and Fairest	5
Junior's Best and Fairest	5
President's Report	6
Financial Report	8
Curtin Liaison Report	11
Membership and Recruitment Director's Report	12
Teams Director's Report	12
Representative Honours 2018	15
Functions and Events	15
Team Reports	16
Women's League Tables	17
Men's League Tables	19
Junior's League Tables	22



## **Curtin University Hockey Club**

#### **Life Members**

From all previous Club identities:

Trinity (Men)	Pirates (Women)	Curtin Trinity Tigers
(1941-1990)	(1931-1990)	(1991 -1997)
1964 Maurice McGovern*	Pat Goodridge*	1991 Ross Theobald
1968 Harold Thornton	Phoebe Bradshaw*	1997 Glen Emslie
1969 Eric Pearce	Shirley Davies	1997 Mark Kendle
1972 Gordon Pearce		
1973 Ron Walker	Aquinians Pirates	Curtin Trinity Pirates
1975 Jim O'Hara	(1990-1997)	(1998-2016)
1975 W (Bill) Connaughton	Elspeth Denning	1998 Troy Kelly
1976 JW (Bill) Andrew		1998 Ian Pestana
1976 John Metcalf*	WAIT	2006 Lorraine Brown
1976 Julian Pearce	P Mason	2009 Michelle Hager
1979 John Hegge*	J Chapman	2013 Julie Branley
1982 Harry Duncan*	M Joynes	2014 Dennis Reid
1989 Kevin Martin	Glenda Scott	2015 Richard Moore
1990 John Andrew		2016 Ian Kealley

<sup>\*</sup>Deceased

#### Office Bearers for the 2018 Season

#### **Executive Committee**

President: Elspeth Denning

Vice President: Tom Reid

Secretary: Lorraine Brown

Treasurer: Shannon Koch

Teams Director: vacant

**Events Director: Kate Denning** 

Membership & Recruitment Director: Melody Slaven

Curtin Liaison: Katie Flanagan



#### **Operational Committee**

Men's Coordinator: Tom Forrest

Women's Coordinator: Matthew Mercer

Junior Coordinator: Amy Woodfield

Masters Coordinator: Dennis Reid/Ian Pestana

**Umpiring Coordinator: Ian Pestana** 

Sponsorship Coordinator: Tom Reid

Governance Coordinator: vacant

Team Liaison & Governance: Julie Branley

Database Administrator: Owen Clark

Website Coordinator: Damon Pollard

Equipment & Merchandise Coordinator: vacant

Clubroom Coordinator: Kate Denning

Fundraising Coordinator: Jackie Stacey

Social Media Coordinator: Amy Woodfield

#### **Award Winners**

#### **Club Awards**

- Elspeth Denning Award-Junior Player Showing Potential: Chelsea Turner
- Most Improved Female: Sophie Johnston
- Most Improved Male: Lucas Allen
- Coach of the Year: Matthew Mercer
- Best Club Person: Amy Woodfield
- Michelle Hager Award-Highest Women's Goal Scorer: Chantelle Ciallella 20 goals
- Mick Waddell Award-Highest Men's Goal Scorer: Ryan West 13 goals
- Best Team: Women's Provisional 2 Black
- Presidents Award: not awarded in 2018
- Pat Goodridge Award for Services to the Club: Matthew Mercer

#### Women's Best and Fairest

Team MVP	Runner Up MVP
----------	---------------



Premier 1	Roos Swann	Kirstie Denning
Premier 2	Chantelle Ciallella	Breanna Baker
Premier Alliance	Melody Slaven	Brooke Kenny
Provisional 2 Black	Lauren Cocking	Christelle Smith
Provisional 3	Hazmira Hamzah	Brianna Watt
Provisional 4	Kate Baptist	Lina Caracciolo
Metro 1	Tara Tomlinson	Maria Wainwright
Master's O/35 Div3	Maria Wainwright	N/A

#### Men's Best and Fairest

Team	MVP	Runner Up MVP
Premier 1	Dane Angwin	Joseph Welch
Premier 2	Jeff Pearce	Matthew Mercer
Premier Alliance	Timothy Wallis	Patrick Wallis
Provisional 3	Aaron Breen	Ben Graham
Provisional 4	Thomas Pavlinovich	James Draper
Master's O/40 Div 2	Ross McGregor	Andrew Cathie
Master's O/50 Div 2	Kalwant Bajwa	John Harper

#### Junior's Best and Fairest

Team	Player's Player	Coach Award	
J11/12 A girls	Chelsea Turner	Brooke Kenny	
Team	MVP	Team Player	
J11/12 B girls	Bianca Leppard	Avi Arnephie-Cook	
	Chantelle Stacey	Tara Tomlinson	
Team	MVP	Runner Up MVP	Most Improved
J9/10 C girls	Amelie Boulden	Jasmin Collard	Shana Naushad
J7/8 C girls	Evie Wells	Skye Celedin	Angel Grenfell

#### **Special Awards & Achievements**

• AHL Player of the Finals: Kaitlin Nobbs & Corey Weyer

Curtin University Sports Awards (following nominations, final results unknown at time of publication)

- Curtin Club of the Year: shortlisted to final three
- Curtin Full Blues: nomination Kristina Bates
- Curtin Half Blues: nominations Sienna Archer, Sophie Johnston
- Curtin Volunteer Service to Sport: nomination Amy Woodfield

## **President's Report**



This is my final year as President and to all our members, players and sponsors, I would like to thank you all for your good sportsmanship and your continual support throughout the year and past 4 years.

- A big congratulations to the women's Prov 2 girls and coach Matt Mercer on making the Grand Final this year. Well done girls.
- Also congratulations to the women's Premier 2's along with Prov 3 men and Prov 3 & Prov 4 women on making the semi finals
- Huge Thanks to Our Vets and life members who are such an important part of our club.
   They continue to support us as they have for decades which has ensured this club has survived.

**To my Committee** - Thank you to my Vice President Tom Reid, Secretary Lorraine Brown, Treasurer Shannon Koch, Events Co-ordinator Director Kate Denning, CU Liaison Officer & CU Recruitment Officer Katie Flanagan, Women's Co-ordinator Matt Mercer, Men's Co-ordinator Tom Forrest and Junior Co-ordinator's Amy Woodfield and Louise Swain.

You have all been a wonderful support to me as President. Again, without you all, this club would not function. Thank you so much.

- **Treasurer**: Shannon is standing down and I would like to thank her for the past 2 years of taking on such a big job.
- **Team Liason:** Julie Branley: for her continuous work stepping in as team liason helping myself and Matt & Tom F.
- Fundraising: Thank you to Jackie Stacey again for running the raffle and what a great
  job she has done along with the entertainment books, wine orders and sausage
  sizzles. She has again done an amazing job.
- **Website**: Damon Pollard and Adam Piggott for their ongoing work and quick updates when needed.
- Data Base: Owen Clark for his assistance throughout the season with our database and registrations.
- Umpiring: Ian Pestana & Lorraine Brown and all the team managers who assisted them.
- Coaches & Managers thank you for your time, effort and dedication
- **Social committee**: Thank you to all that helped throughout the year.
- Amy Woodfield for managing our **social media** channels and organising all our 2018 junior clinics, which have been a great success.

To our sponsors a big thank you to you all, for continually helping our club.

- Major Sponsors
- New Town Toyota Tahnee Piman



- Denning and Associates Grant & Elspeth Denning
- Significant sponsors
- Cambridge Peridontics Darryl Andrews
- Hockey International Jinder
- Thermal Air conditioning Ian Keeley
- Hoopla Espresso
- Sponsor income based on our spend
- Balmoral hotel Andrew Donovan
- Bsc Podiatry Robert Haagman
- Sponsors for Tax purposes (\$1000)
- VCA Australia Pty Ltd Vince Cinanni

Thanks to Kestin & Denis Otway from Desam Fashion who have done a wonderful job with any uniform requirments and donating the 1's & 2s training singlets.

The Eastman Lounge remained our clubroom and we are in talks with CU and HWA to secure something more permanent. Grass fields were secured at Edinburah South Oval and next year we look forward to the fields being a better playing surface.

#### Our short and long terms opportunities are still the same:

#### \*to rebuild & to recruit:

 We employed a Junior Development Officer Aleisha Power who's entire job was to rebuild our juniors. She did a marvellous job and along with Amy Woodfield who organised the clinics, we thank them both.

As we said last season, to those who have now had kids, bring them back to Pirates to play for our minkey and junior sides and lets restart the clock on a huge program to rebuild.

We would like to encourage all members to actively engage in seeking old and new players to come and join us. We need to encourage members to continue on, instead of disappearing as we have kids or as our careers intensify.

It is up to us **all** to help to try to get **new players** to our club each season.

We will hopefully see you all back for season 2019.



#### **Financial Report**

Please see below notes regarding current financial standing as at 31/10/2018. Income 2018

- Fees Income an increase on 2017 due to the addition of 2 new teams however a bit lower than budgeted as two teams struggled to regularly field players.
- Sponsorship approximately the same as budgeted. A decrease on the previous year due to major sponsor paying a 3-year contract in the first year.
- Fundraising a small decrease in the previous year, this was due to the lateness of the raffle. Whilst it was still one of our major fundraisers we had a lot of books go unsold and therefore not a higher income associated. Income is still expected from this year's entertainment books and wine fundraiser.
- Grants money expected late 2018 for a grant for incurred coaching expenses to the value of \$3000

#### Expenses 2018

- Affiliation fees up due to the addition of 2 new teams increase as expected.
- Hockey Australia Levy caused a large change in expenses from previous year.
- Coaching as budgeted, no large increase on previous year.
- Player imports similar to budgeted figure, slight decrease from previous year.
- Game Hire as expected, slight increases across all turfs meant slightly higher than
  previous year. This also increased due to the addition of a new men's and a new
  women's team.
- Training Expenses much greater than anticipated due to the increased amount of lower grade trainings. Need to review with Hockey WA as some funds expected back.

#### **Balance Sheet 2018**

- Cash Balance at bank has decreased on previous year
- Uniform Inventory increased in anticipation for next year.
- A large amount of fees still owing to the club.
- No new major assets
- Total equity has decreased

Our affiliation with Mercedes College teams in the junior ranks is on a user pays basis and the College reimburses CUHC for all costs associated – these are equalised throughout the year.

As we can see, the profit and loss and balance sheet currently appear not to our favour. We are expecting some funds in the way of grants and further fundraising still into the account, which should hopefully work to decrease this deficit. The committee has already started discussing next years budget and how we can work to improve this for next year. One key need to keep player fees down is an increase in sponsorship, an aspect where all members can assist in sourcing. The second is a shared responsibility of fundraising across all teams.



Created: 6/11/2018 7:00 PM

## Curtin University Hockey Club Curtin Stadium, Building 111 Curtin University, Kent St Bentley WA 6102

ABN: 22 925 424 622

#### **Profit & Loss Statement**

November 2017 To October 2018

				Email: treasurer@cuhc.org.
ncome				
Senior Subscriptions		\$92,757.50		
Junior Subscriptions		\$4,324.00		
Sponsorship Internal		\$6,880.00		
Sponsorship External		\$7,545.58		
Donations		\$50.00		
Club Raffle		\$12,920.00		
Quiz Night		\$2,236.25		
Wind Up Ticket Sales		\$2,430.00		
Bar Sales		\$678.70		
Bunning BBQ		\$4,881.25		
Entertainment Books		\$966.00		
Other Fundraising		\$130.00		
Club Uniform		\$5,647.00		
Supporter Jackets		\$810.00		
Club Merchandise		\$782.15		
otal Income			\$143,038.43	
Cost Of Sales				
Opening Stock		\$7,855.17		
Merchandise Purchases				
Uniforms	\$10,186.40			
Supporter Jackets (Desam)	\$786.50			
Merchandise	\$1,022.08			
Fundraising Expenses				
Raffle Expenses	\$5,610.40			
Social Events	\$240.00			
Quiz Night	\$300.00			
Windup	\$567.85			
Bunnings BBQ	\$1,573.52			
Discounts				
Comittee Discounts	\$1,725.00			
Coaching Discounts	\$2,088.50			
Curtin Student Discounts	\$2,412.00			
Closing Stock	100	-\$12,5 <mark>1</mark> 0.60		
otal Cost Of Sales			\$21,856.82	
Gross Profit			\$121,181.61	
xpenses				
Stationary		\$88.00		
Hockey WA Expenses				
HWA Affliliation Fees	\$37,024.98			
HWA Insurance	\$3,657.00			
Hockey Australia Levy	\$9,333.50			
Team Expenses				
Coaching	\$28,578.25			
Fines	\$935.00			
Player Payments - Imports	\$6,168.38			
Rent & Grounds				
Game Hire - PHS	\$12,598.97			
Games Hire - Others	\$12,647.25			
	\$4,635.55			
Training - PHS	34,055.55			

This report includes Year-End Adjustments.

Page 1 of 2



Created: 6/11/2018 7:00 PM

#### Curtin University Hockey Club

Curtin Stadium, Building 111 Curtin University, Kent St Bentley WA 6102

ABN: 22 925 424 622 Email: treasurer@cuhc.org.au

#### **Profit & Loss Statement**

November 2017 To October 2018

Training Hire - Other Team Nominations	\$37.50 \$7,350.00	
Total Expenses	\$126,374.36	
Operating Profit	-\$5,192.75	
Other Income Interest Income	\$211.59	
Total Other Income	\$211.59	
Other Expenses		
Net Profit/(Loss)	-\$4,981.16	
	-\$4,981.16	

Created: 6/11/2018 7:02 PM

#### Curtin University Hockey Club

Curtin Stadium, Building 111 Curtin University, Kent St Bentley WA 6102

ABN: 22 925 424 622 Email: treasurer@cuhc.org.au

### **Balance Sheet**

As of October 2018

Assets					
Bank Accounts					
Fees Account 0377954	\$4,663.15				
Telenet Saver	\$6,320.75				
Inventory - Clothing	\$12,510.60				
Computers					
Computers At Cost	\$700.00				
Accum. Depr. Computers	-\$700.00				
Trade Debtors		\$8,590.00			
Total Assets			\$32,084.50		
Liabilities					
Trade Creditors		\$1,783.27			
Total Liabilities			\$1,783.27		
Net Assets			\$30,301.23		
Equity					
Retained Earnings		\$38,977.47			
Current Year Earnings		-\$4,981.16			
Historical Balancing		-\$5,460.45			
Total Equity			\$28,535.86		



#### **Curtin Liaison Report**

The 2018 season has seen some major changes and new developments as we become embedded in the Curtin University community.

This year we made another move to a more permanent home on Edinburgh South Oval. With the conditions on South Oval not well suited for hockey and limited to one field, through discussions with Curtin University in late 2017 we secured the University's commitment to convert the then unused Edinburgh South to the home of Curtin hockey. Throughout the 2017/18 summer we worked with Curtin Stadium and the Curtin properties team to convert the space into two new hockey fields for the 2018 season. With a ground surface more suitable to hockey but having not been used as a sporting ground for many years the properties team worked over many weeks to fill in potholes and upgrade the grass quality.

Edinburgh South was, many years ago, a traditional hockey base, and we were excited to return to a more central location, surrounded by Curtin's age old pine trees on the heart of campus. The move didn't come without a number of hiccoughs, and we are very grateful to all our members for their patience as we worked through those with Curtin Stadium. I am pleased to confirm that in 2019 Edinburgh South will not be used for multiple sports, allowing for better playing quality throughout the season.

The move to Edinburgh South also allowed us to trial the use of shared clubrooms on the main Edinburgh Oval. The clubrooms are also the home of Curtin's Football (soccer), Rugby and Ultimate Frisbee teams, and have enabled us to forge new relationships with the broader Curtin sporting community. As we move towards the 2019 season Curtin University has committed to strengthening our access to the clubrooms, and the club will endeavour to make this a more permanent home for our memorabilia, club activities and social gatherings on game days.

Our integration with Curtin sports has gained further momentum in 2018, with a CUHC presence at all open days and club days throughout the year. We have further engaged in the development of key partnerships with Curtin feeder schools, including Penrhos and Como, and have participated in the Carnaby Kids programs throughout the year. These partnerships have allowed us to engage hundreds of primary and school aged children in Curtin hockey. Additionally Curtin have supported the growth of our club in securing access for field and facility access at PHS through current negotiations around Hockey WA's arrangements with the University. Negotiations are ongoing and we look forward to providing positive updates to the club in 2019.

I sincerely thank Curtin University for their ongoing support of CUHC, their commitment to establishing hockey as a key sport amongst the University community and their assistance throughout the year with fields, facilities, development activities and promotion of CUHC



activities. We look forward to continuing our journey as the Curtin University Hockey Club in 2019.

#### **Membership and Recruitment Director's Report**

2018 has been another successful year of growth for CUHC. With numbers increasing across both our junior and senior grades, including a large increase in our junior teams and an increase in our Curtin student numbers, our members and volunteers have done a fantastic job in bringing new members of all ages to our club.

This year the club continued our strong engagement with our regional hockey centres, participating in the Bunbury Super 9s and leading a CUHC tour to Narrogin which included a friendly match and junior clinic. We continue to strengthen our role as a home away from home for members from regional areas and we look forward to welcoming more friends from our regional areas in 2019.

This year the club also welcomed another two international players from the UK who competed strongly in our men's 1s, and we are in discussion with Curtin University to develop potential international partnerships with the University's strategic international partners.

Our ongoing integration with the University has seen strong numbers of Curtin students join and return to CUHC, with the club holding stalls at all orientation, club and student guild days. The club was one of the only sporting clubs to have representation at all these open days, which has further strengthened our links to the Curtin student and sporting community.

One of the biggest success stories for 2018 has been the development and implementation of our revitalised Hookin2Hockey program. Led by Amy Woodfield, with Aliesha Power coming on board as our Junior Development Officer, this program saw over 1,000 primary and high school aged students participate in CUHC led hockey activities throughout the year. The club ran new Hookin2Hockey programs at: Aubin Grove Primary School, Manning Primary School, Ursula Frayne Primary School, and St Columba's Primary School. These programs involved over 600 students throughout 2018.

An additional program was also run in partnership with Penrhos college, including provision of coaches to their 5/6 development group and a hockey have a go day involving over 500 Penrhos students. A home based Hookin2Hockey program at Curtin University has also enrolled 47 children to date, held at Edinburgh South Oval on campus.

Looking forward to 2019 the club is in a strong recruitment position to continue to build. I thank all members and helpers who have assisted the club across all these activities this year, you have done a fabulous job!

(Curtin Liaison)



#### **Teams Director's Report**

#### Women's Coordinator's Review

This season saw the introduction of a sixth lower grade women's team into the competition, bringing the total number of women's teams across all senior grades to eight teams. The introduction of the new Provisional 4's team was successful, with the team placing third in their first season.

Notably, half of the CUHC women's teams made it into finals in the 2018 season, with the Provisional 2 Women attending the Grand Final, unfortunately missing out in a narrow 2-1 loss against John XXIII.

I acknowledge the efforts of our coaching team particularly Blair Patten, Tom Beard, Owen Clark and Matt Swann. Without dedicated coaches these teams would not run as well as they currently do.

To the managers for each of the Women's team, Elspeth Denning, Tricia Hawgood, Mikayla Congram, Christelle Smith, Tam Watts, Michelle Theobold, Lorraine Brown and Mary Bell I wish to pass on my appreciation to you all for volunteering your time during the 2018 season.

#### Men's Coordinator's Review

I would like to congratulate all CUHC Men's players for their commitment and endeavour throughout season 2018. Despite not getting the results we wanted, we can take solace in the fact that through sheer will and determination, our Premier League men were victorious in the Promotion/Relegation Playoffs, meaning we maintain our position in the Premier League. Kate Starre should be proud of her efforts after taking on a group of young and very inexperienced players, and showing continual improvement throughout the year.

I would personally like to thank all coaches and managers for the 2018 season. The efforts of these selfless people are vital for the smooth operation of the club. Clubs and teams would not exist without volunteers and the people mentioned below have made the coordinator's job much more manageable.

I would like to make special mention of lan Pestana and the players in our newest team, Provisional 4 (Sand). Often short of numbers, many of the clubs more experienced members (including a goalkeeper in his 70s) were called upon to help out. In true Pirate spirit, the 5s had a fantastic season and unfortunately just missed out on finals after a very positive first half of the year.

I would also like to acknowledge and commiserate our only finals bound Men's team, Provisional 3 (Gold). After a fast start, they finished the season in third position and unfortunately lost the semi-final 5-6 in a high scoring affair against Lions. The boys should be proud of their efforts and hopefully go all the way next season! Congratulations go to Lewis Cann (Coach, Manager and Captain) for his enormous efforts throughout the year.

Finally, I would like to mention the efforts of Julie Branley, Elspeth Denning, and Adam Piggott, for making my first year as Men's Coordinator not a complete disaster. Looking forward to where we can take the club in season 2019 and beyond!

#### **Master's Coordinator's Review**



The men fielded two teams in the 2018 season. O/40 div 2 team was promoted this year and had a group of experienced past players who played and were very competitive. They were very unlucky not to make the four and hopefully they will make the finals with a few more new players.

O/50 Div 2 played against much younger opposition players but when there was a full squad won against two of the teams that were in the top four and were competitive against a lot of the other sides. Next year we hope to go to O/60 Div 1 and should do very well.

We are hoping to put another men's masters side in and that should make it three grass teams in total, but we need the fields to be in a lot better condition than this year. Overall the teams are very happy playing and supporting the other sides that played at Curtin grass each weekend.

Women's masters 0/35 Div 3, playing midweek on turf, had what would usually be considered a successful season, losing only 4 games for the year, however the new club record of 11 draws saw only a 6<sup>th</sup> place finish...must be close to a HWA record too....but it made for great banter from the opposition teams each week resulting in a very enjoyable season once again. Definitely aiming to change a few draws into wins next year.

#### **Junior Coordinator's Review**

We have made great progress in promoting and rebuilding the junior side of the club this year. We commenced in Term 1 of the school year with a couple of 8 week beginner Hook in2 Hockey programs at local primary schools and followed up with similar sessions at Edinburgh South Oval. These primary school sessions have continued throughout each school term and we thank Aleisha Power and her band of assistants for their dedication to our little CUHC athletes. The Term 4 sessions are currently in full swing, with the next step being 'have a go' sessions to be held pre-season in readiness for hopefully converting these young players starting out in hockey into full time team members for the 2019 season. Four teams were fielded in the older junior girls grades with a mix of CUHC based teams and teams fielded in affiliation with Mercedes College, where CUHC provide coaches, a model that has the possibility of being developed further with other high school based teams that are not already club based.

Hopefully in 2019 we will see the re-emergence of junior boys around the club, so support and work during the pre-season in vital. We always need more volunteers to assist the running of the junior teams within the club, a fun and rewarding way to give back to our club.



#### **Representative Honours 2018**

AUSTRALIAN REPRESENTATIVES: Kristina Bates, Andrew Charter, Kaitlin Nobbs,

Penny Squibb, Corey Weyer

AUSTRALIAN DEVELOPMENT SQUAD: Aleisha Power, Penny Squibb, Roos Swann

AUSTRALIAN U23 JUNIOR TEAM: Annie Gibbs, Aleisha Power

**AUSTRALIAN U18 FUTURES:** Sarah Brynes

WAIS: Sienna Archer, Annie Gibbs, Aleisha Power, Penny Squibb, Roos Swann,

Sarah Byrnes T/A

#### **NATIONAL HOCKEY LEAGUE SQUADS:**

WA – Sienna Archer, Annie Gibbs, Aleisha Power, Penny Squibb, Roos Swann

**ACT - Andrew Charter** 

NSW - Kaitlin Nobbs

QLD - Corey Weyer

Tas - Blair Patten

Vic - Kristina Bates

WA U21: Sienna Archer, Sarah Byrnes, Annie Gibbs, Sophie Johnson, Aleisha Power

WA U18: Sarah Byrnes

WA U17: Kallen Otway (Development Squad)

WA MASTERS: John Harper (70+) Judy Hawrylak (55+) Ian Pestana (65+ Player Coach)

Ian Kealley (65+) Murray West (45/2 SA Country )

WA U15: Ana Cana-Machado & Hayleigh Duck (HWA Development Program)

WA INDOOR: Grace Cohen (Open), Caitlyn West (U21)

#### **Functions and Events**

Thanks to all members who attended and got involved in this year's social events. These are a really important part of establishing off field culture and an area we hope to build upon next year.

2018 marks 20 years since Pirates Womens Hockey Club and Trinity Tigers Hockey Club amalgamated to form Curtin Trinity Pirates. 1998 was a special year for our club with Pirates going on to take out both the men's and women's Premier 1 premiership flags. To celebrate we held a reunion event at Balmoral Hotel. Was great to see past and present members share memories and reminisce over old school memorabilia. We plan to continue this tradition going forward in an effort to keep past members involved in our club.



This year saw the return of our annual quiz night. With approximately 80 people in attendance, the quiz night showed pirates aren't just competitive on the field. PHS Eastman Room was a great location. Thanks to Mandy Symons for MCing, Lorraine Brown and Elspeth Denning for setting up and special mention to Hannah Cinnani's table who took out first prize.

We also had good turn out to Opening Round Day to support our Premier League teams at the start of the season as well as our Premier League Men during their relagation series. Our end of year pub night at Balmoral was a great way to celebrate the end of the regular season and congratulate those that were preparing for finals.

Special thanks to Mikayla Congram and Alison Douglas for organising our country themed "Night in Nashville" party where an array of interesting costumes were on display!

Our final event, the end of year wind up, celebrates another successful year at Curtin University Hockey Club.

#### **Team Reports**

Team	Result	Coach	Manager
Premier League Women	6 <sup>th</sup>	Matthew Swann	Elspeth Denning
Premier League Men	12 <sup>th</sup>	Kate Starre	Shannon Koch
		Asst: Nick Budgeon	
Premier 2 Women	4 <sup>th</sup> Semi Final	Tom Beard	Tricia Hawgood
Premier 2 Men	9 <sup>th</sup>	Julie Branley	Colleen West
Premier Alliance Women	5 <sup>th</sup>	Blair Patten	Mikayla Congram
Premier Alliance Men	10 <sup>th</sup>	Adam Piggott	Patrick Wallis
Provisional 2 Women	3 <sup>rd</sup> Grand Final	Matthew Mercer	Christelle Smith
Provisional 3 Women	4 <sup>th</sup> Semi Final	Tony Ziegelaar	Tamarah Watts
Provisional 3 Men	3 <sup>rd</sup> Semi Final	Lewis Cann	Lewis Cann
Provisional 4 Women	3 <sup>rd</sup> Semi Final	Owen Clark	Michelle Theobald
Provisional 4 Men	5 <sup>th</sup>	Ian Pestana	Alex Hall
Metro 1 Women	8 <sup>th</sup>	n/a	Lorraine Brown
O/35 Div 3 Women	8 <sup>th</sup>	n/a	Lorraine Brown
			& Mary Bell
O/40 Div 2 Men	6 <sup>th</sup>	n/a	Damian Ellis
O/50 Div 2 Men	9 <sup>th</sup>	n/a	Richard Moore
J11/12A Girls	8 <sup>th</sup>	Troy Kelly &	Kerstin Otway
		Louise Swain	
J11/12B Girls	10 <sup>th</sup>	Trevor Cook	Jackie Stacey
			& Anne Fraser
J9/10C Girls	4 <sup>th</sup>	Chantelle Veron	Jane Donnelly
		& Megan Woodfield	
J7/8C Girls	5 <sup>th</sup>	Carl Celedin	Marion Gismondi



## Women's League Tables

Premier 1 Women	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	P%
Westside Wolves	18	11	4	3	38	31	7	36	66.67
Lions	18	10	4	4	32	25	7	34	62.96
UWA	18	9	6	3	32	17	15	30	55.56
WASPS	18	9	8	1	30	31	-1	28	51.85
Melville	18	8	7	3	30	28	2	27	50
Curtin University	18	6	6	6	42	27	15	24	44.44
Vic Park	18	7	8	3	28	33	-5	24	44.44
Hale	18	5	8	5	35	42	-7	20	37.04
NC Raiders	18	5	10	3	19	35	-16	18	33.33
Old Aquinians	18	3	12	3	29	46	-17	12	22.22

Premier 2 Women	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	P%
Melville 2	18	14	1	3	66	15	51	45	83.33
UWA 2	18	13	2	3	48	16	32	42	77.78
Lions 2	18	12	3	3	38	18	20	39	72.22
Curtin University 2	18	11	4	3	55	35	20	36	66.67
Old Aquinians 2	18	5	7	6	19	28	-9	20.90	38.89
Westside Wolves 2	18	5	10	3	26	58	-32	18	33.33
Vic Park 2	18	4	11	3	20	31	-11	15	27.78
WASPS 2	18	4	11	3	17	38	-21	15	27.78
NC Raiders 2	18	3	12	3	19	42	-23	12	22.22
Hale 2	18	3	13	2	19	46	-27	10.70	20.37

<b>Premier Alliance Women</b>	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	P%
Melville 3	18	15	1	2	46	14	32	47	87.04
Oid Aquinians 3	18	10	4	4	29	15	14	34	62.96
Vic Park 3	18	8	5	5	42	24	18	29	53.70
UWA 3	18	7	4	7	33	26	7	28	51.85
Curtin University 3	18	8	7	3	30	36	-6	26.70	50
Lions 3	18	7	7	4	25	30	-5	25	46.30
Hale 3	18	5	10	3	16	30	-14	17.70	33.33
NC Raiders 3	18	3	0	6	11	27	-16	15	27.78
WASPS 3	18	3	10	5	17	27	-10	14	25.93
Westside Wolves 3	18	3	12	3	16	36	-20	12	22.22

Provisional 2	D	14/	4	<b>C</b>	CE	C A	SD	PTS	D0/
(Black) Women	r	VV	-	U	3F	SA	30	FIS	F /0



John XXIII	18	15	1	2	52	11	41	47	87.04
Uni Associates 3	18	10	6	2	32	26	6	32	59.26
Curtin University 4	18	9	5	4	36	18	18	30.70	57.41
UWA 6	18	9	7	2	37	22	15	29	53.70
YMCC 4	18	6	5	7	18	21	-3	25	41.7%
Ellenbrook Falcons	18	6	7	5	31	31	0	23	42.59
Newman Knights 2	18	6	10	2	19	41	-22	20	37.04
Hale 5	18	5	10	3	22	36	-14	17.70	33.33
NC Raiders 4	18	2	9	7	14	26	-12	13	24.07
Old Aquinians 6	18	2	10	6	14	43	-29	12	22.22

Provisional 3 (Gold) Women	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	P%
Kalamunda	16	13	2	1	42	7	35	40	83.33
Rockingham 3	16	10	3	3	31	11	20	33	68.75
Old Aquinians 7	16	9	3	4	35	11	24	31	64.58
Curtin University 5	16	6	3	7	26	21	5	25	52.08
Fremantle 5	16	6	5	5	33	30	3	23	47.92
WASPS 5	16	4	6	6	22	28	-6	18	37.50
Southern River 3	16	3	8	5	16	29	-13	14	29.17
Melville 6	16	2	11	2	11	34	-23	9	18.75
Dale	16	1	13	2	8	53	-45	5	10.42

Provisional 4 (Gold) Women	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	P%
Vic Park 5	18	15	2	1	45	6	39	46	85.19
Kalamunda 2	18	13	3	2	40	12	28	41	75.93
Curtin University 6	18	11	4	3	40	17	23	36	66.67
Blades 2	18	12	6	0	50	30	20	36	66.67
WASPS 6	18	7	7	4	31	24	7	25	46.30
WASPS 7	18	7	7	4	24	27	-3	25	46.30
Rockingham 4	18	6	8	4	20	19	1	22	40.74
Old Aquinians 8	18	3	13	2	13	30	-17	11	20.37
Melville 7	18	3	15	0	3	56	-53	9	16.67
UWA 9	18	2	14	2	4	49	-45	8	14.81

Metro 1 Women	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	P%
Westside Wolves 6	18	17	0	1	85	8	77	52	96.30
WASPS 8	18	14	2	2	92	16	76	44	81.48
Melville 8	18	12	3	3	43	15	28	39	72.22
John XXIII 2	18	10	7	1	43	30	13	31	57.41



Modernians 4	18	7	10	1	21	55	-34	22	40.74
Uni Associates 4	18	4	13	1	15	50	-35	13	24.07
Harlies	18	3	14	1	12	58	-46	10	18.52
Curtin University 7	18	0	18	0	4	83	-79	0	0

O35 Division 3 Women	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	Р%
Whitford	18	11	3	4	48	20	28	37	68.52
Modernians 2	18	10	2	6	27	15	12	36	66.67
Lions 2	18	10	3	5	40	17	23	35	64.81
Rockingham	18	8	5	5	33	26	7	29	53.70
Uni Associates 2	18	8	5	5	34	28	6	29	53.70
<b>Curtin University</b>	18	3	4	11	21	23	-2	20	37.04
Canning	18	4	7	7	23	35	-12	19	35.19
Vic Park	18	5	11	2	30	41	-11	17	31.48
Hale	18	4	10	4	30	42	-12	16	29.63
Fremantle 3	18	1	14	3	17	56	-39	6	11.11

## Men's League Tables

Premier 1 Men	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	P%
YMCC	22	13	4	5	54	25	29	44	66.67
WASPS	22	14	8	0	67	40	27	42	63.64
Melville	22	13	6	3	63	47	16	41.70	63.64
Fremantle	22	13	7	2	59	31	28	41	62.12
Old Aquinians	22	12	5	5	63	48	15	41	62.12
UWA	22	13	9	0	82	44	38	39	59.09
OGMHC	22	11	8	3	70	68	2	35.80	54.55
Hale	22	11	9	2	65	47	18	35	53.03
Westside Wolves	22	8	11	3	60	57	3	27	40.91
Vic Park	22	8	12	2	56	66	-10	26	39.39
NC Raiders	22	1	18	3	32	106	-74	6	9.09
<b>Curtin University</b>	22	1	21	0	33	125	-92	3	4.55

Premier 2 Men	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	P%
UWA 2	22	18	2	2	79	33	46	56	84.85
Hale 2	22	18	3	1	95	32	63	55	83.33
Westside Wolves 2	22	15	5	2	73	29	44	46.90	71.21
Melville 2	22	13	5	4	68	33	35	43	65.15
Vic Park 2	22	13	5	4	58	37	21	43	65.15
WASPS 2	22	10	7	5	52	47	5	35	53.03



Fremantle 2	22	6	11	5	36	65	-29	23	34.85
Old Aquinians 2	22	6	16	0	44	74	-30	18	27.27
Curtin University 2	22	4	14	4	43	74	-31	16	24.24
YMCC 2	22	3	14	5	25	60	-35	13.90	21.21
NC Raiders 2	22	3	15	4	30	77	-47	13	19.70
OGMHC 2	22	3	15	4	39	81	-42	12.70	19.70

Premier Alliance Men	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	P%
UWA 3	18	15	2	1	78	16	62	46	85.19
Vic Park 3	18	14	3	1	72	25	47	43	79.63
Melville 3	18	14	3	1	66	30	36	43	79.63
Hale 3	18	10	2	6	50	29	21	36	66.67
OGMHC 3	18	8	5	5	47	48	-1	29	53.70
Westside Wolves 3	18	7	9	2	38	35	3	23	42.59
NC Raiders 3	18	6	9	3	45	57	-12	21	38.89
Old Aquinians 3	18	5	8	5	25	42	-17	20	37.04
WASPS 3	18	4	10	4	25	37	-12	16	29.63
<b>Curtin University 3</b>	18	3	13	2	23	82	-59	11	20.37
YMCC 3	18	3	13	2	25	55	-30	10.50	10.50
Fremantle 3	18	2	14	2	18	56	-38	7.90	14.81

Provisional 3 (Gold)Men	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	P%
UWA 10	16	15	0	1	78	21	57	45.90	95.83
Old Aquinians 8	16	12	1	3	52	9	43	39	81.25
<b>Curtin University 4</b>	16	8	7	1	26	29	-3	25	52.08
Lions 5	16	7	6	3	23	21	2	24	50
Kalamunda 4	16	5	5	6	18	26	-8	21	43.75
Dale	16	5	7	4	25	30	-5	19	39.58
Southern River 2	16	5	9	2	18	33	-15	17	35.42
Fremantle 5	16	2	11	3	21	44	-23	9	18.75
Melville 6	16	1	14	1	13	61	-48	3.30	8.33

Provisional 4 (Sand)Men	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	P%
Blades 2	18	16	0	2	104	14	90	50	92.59
OGMHC 4	18	12	5	1	58	20	38	37	68.52
Kalamunda 3	18	9	5	4	41	30	11	31	57.41
Canning 2	18	9	8	1	51	51	0	28	51.85
<b>Curtin University 5</b>	18	8	7	3	41	41	0	27	50
WASPS 7	18	5	10	3	24	63	-39	18	33.33
UWA 9	18	3	13	2	25	47	-22	11	20.37



O40 Division 2 Men	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	P%
Hale	18	14	1	3	81	25	56	45	83.33
Vic Park	18	9	4	5	38	24	14	32	59.26
Lions	18	10	7	1	44	32	12	31	57.41
John XXIII	18	10	7	1	37	28	9	31	57.41
Southern River	18	7	6	5	39	26	13	26	48.15
<b>Curtin University</b>	18	7	6	5	38	32	6	26	48.15
Fremantle	18	7	6	5	40	45	-5	26	48.15
YMCC 2	18	5	11	2	27	45	-18	17	31.48
WASPS	18	3	10	5	22	39	-17	14	25.93
Whitford 2	18	1	15	2	14	84	-70	5	9.26

O50 Division 2 Men	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	P%
NC Raiders 3	16	12	4	0	49	20	29	36	75
John XXIII 2	16	10	4	2	41	31	10	32	66.67
Hale 3	16	9	5	2	39	24	15	29	60.42
Lions 5	16	9	5	2	36	27	9	29	60.42
Willetton Reds	16	9	6	1	39	28	11	28	58.33
Melville 4	16	8	6	2	35	29	6	26	54.17
Uni Associates 3	16	5	9	2	26	35	-9	17	35.42
Whitford 4	16	2	12	2	16	38	-22	8	16.67
<b>Curtin University 2</b>	16	1	14	1	10	59	-49	4	8.33

## Junior's League Tables

J 11/12 A Girls	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	P%
Melville	14	14	0	0	71	6	65	42	100
Vic Park	14	9	5	0	32	25	7	27	64.29
UWA	14	7	6	1	29	31	-2	22	52.38
Lions	14	6	7	1	29	24	5	19	45.24
Westside Wolves	14	5	8	1	26	38	-12	16	38.10
AW Reds	14	4	7	3	20	31	-11	15	35,71
Fremantle	14	3	9	2	23	46	-23	11	26.19
<b>Curtin University</b>	14	3	9	2	24	53	-29	11	26.19

J 11/12 B Girls	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	P%
Newman Knights	10	10	0	0	63	4	59	30	100
Hale	13	10	1	2	36	15	21	32	82.05
Joondalup Lakers	13	7	3	3	39	14	25	24	61.54



St Brigids	13	7	6	0	42	32	10	21	53.85
WASPS	14	7	6	1	36	33	3	22	52.38
Vic Park	14	5	4	5	27	22	5	20	47.62
Fremantle 2	14	6	6	2	23	20	3	20	47.62
Westside Wolves	14	3	10	1	13	46	-33	10	23.81
Whitford	14	1	9	4	12	36	-24	7	16.67
<b>Curtin University 2</b>	13	0	11	2	1	70	-69	2	5.13

J 9/10 C Girls	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	Р%
Ellenbrook Falcons	12	8	3	1	53	25	28	25	69.44
Westside Wolves (RED)	12	7	3	2	62	23	39	23	63.89
St Brigids	12	7	4	1	44	34	10	22	61.11
<b>Curtin University</b>	12	4	8	0	16	41	-25	12	33.33
OGMHC	12	2	10	0	10	62	-52	6	16.67

J 7/8 C (Gold) Girls	P	W	L	D	SF	SA	SD	PTS	P%
Southern River	15	13	1	1	56	7	49	40	88.89
St Brigids	15	12	2	1	64	11	53	37	82.22
Fremantle	15	6	8	1	24	42	-18	19	42.22
Rockingham	15	5	8	2	28	34	-6	17	37.78
<b>Curtin University</b>	15	3	7	5	9	24	-15	14	31.11
Kalamunda	15	0	13	2	2	65	-63	2	4.44